
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, NEW JERSEY 

 

Minutes of: Township Council Workshop 

Date of Meeting: October 1, 2008 

Time of Meeting: 7:30 P.M. 

Minute Page No: Page 1 of 8 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
The Workshop Meeting of the West Milford Township Council was called to order by Mayor Bettina Bieri. 
 
Adequate Notice Statement 
Mayor Bieri read the following statement: 
Please note that in accordance with Chapter 231, Public Laws of 1975 of New Jersey, adequate advance 
notice of this Workshop meeting was advertised in the Herald News in its issue of January 6, 2008; copies 
were provided to the Suburban Trends, the Record, Star Ledger, and Greenwood Lake News and posted 
continuously on the bulletin board in the main corridor of the Town Hall and on file in the Office of the 
Township Clerk. 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
Mayor Bieri led all in attendance in a salute to the flag. 
 
Roll Call 

 
Present:  Councilmembers Philip Weisbecker, Joseph Smolinski, Robert Nolan, 

Marilyn Lichtenberg, Carmelo Scangarello.  Mayor Bettina Bieri. 
Absent:  Councilman Salvatore Schimmenti. 
Also Present:   Interim Township Administrator and Township Clerk Antoinette Battaglia,  

from the office of Township Attorney Frederick Semrau, Dominic DiYanni. 
 

Agenda No. II 
Reading of or Approval of Unapproved Minutes 
 
None. 
 

Agenda No. III 
Meetings 
 
Mayor Bieri noted the future meeting schedule: 
 
October 8, 2008 Regular Meeting  October 22, 2008 Workshop Meeting 
November 5, 2008 Regular Meeting  November 26, 2008 Workshop Meeting 
 

Agenda No. IV 
Presentations 
 
Facilities Assessment Presentation.   
Interim Township Administrator Battaglia said that she wished to convey that the Township has formed a 
Facilities Assessment Committee that has been very proactive in accomplishing quite a few things.  They were 
charged with improving energy usage in Township facilities, providing an improved working environment in 
municipal facilities, making our municipal facilities ADA compliant to the best of the Townships availability and 
improving customer service.  This first phase was focused on redesigning the layout of staffing for municipal 
services.  She deferred to Township Construction Official Timothy Ligus.  He spoke about the Johner Building 
that they had looked at with the possibilities of relocating different departments.  The building is designed for 
“one stop shopping” and concern was given to providing a free flowing area.  The Johner Building can house 
the Building Department, Engineering Department, Recreation Department and Health Department.  The 
building currently houses Fire Prevention.  The building is ADA compliant with regards to the bathrooms etc.  It 
is energy efficient.  The Township owns the building and it has new heating and air-conditioning units.  It is 
geared to be retrofit.  The windows need slight updating and the ADA ramps need updating.  Ms. Battaglia said 
that by moving the departments that are housed in the basement of the current Township facilities, other offices 
could be relocated on the upstairs of Town Hall.  Mayor Bieri said that this would make the buildings usage 
more efficient.  Each department would gain space.  The current Town Hall would become the finance and 
administrative departments segment of the Township.  This is the first stage and upon the recommendation of 
the Mayor and Council, the next task will be presented to the Committee, which would be programs.  Mayor 
Bieri explained that the first step is to address staffing needs.  Fine-tuning is needed.  If the Council likes the 
idea then input can be gotten from the department heads.  Mr. Ligus said that the building is approximately 
14,000 square feet.  Currently 1300 square feet are being utilized for Township departments.  Storage at the 
Johner facility is currently a tiered system and this can be relocated to the basement at Town Hall.  Ms. 
Battaglia stated that the departments are currently undertaking records management at the Johner Building and 
that a major purge will take place under the guidance of the Division of Archives and Records Management.  
Councilman Scangarello thanked the Mayor and Council and the Committee members.  Questions were taken 
from the public with regards to specifics of the building such as ADA ramps and office layouts.  Consensus from 
the Council was to proceed with the Johner plan.    
 
   

Agenda No. V 



------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, NEW JERSEY 

 

Minutes of: Township Council Workshop 

Date of Meeting: October 1, 2008 

Time of Meeting: 7:30 P.M. 

Minute Page No: Page 2 of 8 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Proclamations 
 
None. 
 

Agenda No. VI 
Public Comments 
 
Tom Davis, Pinecliff and Bald Eagle Commons – spoke regarding traffic and expressed that there are 
speeding issues near Bald Eagle.  He asked for  “Yield to Pedestrian” signs for the supermarket areas.  
He said that there is no stop sign at Dunkin Donuts onto Union Valley Road.  He said that it takes too long 
to exit side streets to many of the main thoroughfares at rush hour.   He said that trees on Morsetown 
Road need trimming and asked if the Township would provide additional lighting on Township roads.   
 
Doris Aaronson, 19 Bearfort Road – stated that the people from the Tennesee Pipeline appeared not to 
know anything about the pipeline and West Milford.  The pipeline is on the township map.  The pipeline 
has been used for years for hiking and horseback riding.  An agreement should allow continued use by 
residents of West Milford.  She recommended setting up a committee to input on the pipeline issue which 
she feels should consist of six people, those being Rob Sparkes, Councilman Scangarello, the Evergreen 
Farms owner, a representative of the township Engineering Department, Bernie Stapleton and Ada Erik. 
 
Blanche DeSimone, 24 East Park Drive – explained that her property borders Gordon Lake East.  The 
allure is being diminished because the lake is turning into a swamp.  She reviewed the history 
surrounding catch basins and sediment basins.  Sedimentation basins were not installed.  She has paid 
for something that she did not get.  The only solution is to install sedimentation basins now.  This is 
reasonable and doable.  She thanked the Mayor and Council for their consideration. 
 
James Warden, 199 High Crest Drive – asked Mayor Bieri and the Council to consider making a link to 
Municipal TV available on the Township website.  He asked the Council to discuss this.  Every meeting is 
posted there.  Technology is tremendous and this provides transparency in government.  He said that he 
would offer a link to the Republican website. 
 
Jim Novack, Largemont Drive – stated that many businesses are repainting parking lots without 
compliance to the law.  He also said that the Township facilities need stripes repainted.  He said that the 
Bearfort handicap sign is not compliant.  He cannot find ADA parking because paint is worn out. 
 
Andrew Gargano, 45 Apshawa Crossroad – expressed that the Tennessee Gas Pipeline should provide 
more than a Certificate of Insurance.  The Township should be named as an additional insured.  The 
limits should be raised and a hold harmless agreement secured. 
 
    
Mayor Bieri opened the meeting to the public after advising that there is a five-minute limit for each 
speaker. 
 
There being no more comments from the public Mayor Bieri moved to close the public portion of the 
meeting. 
------------------------------------------------------- 
Moved:   Smolinski      Seconded:  Weisbecker 
Voted Aye:   Weisbecker, Smolinski, Nolan, Lichtenberg, Scangarello. 
Voted Nay:   None. 
Motion carried. 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 
Agenda No. VII 

Council Comments 
 
Township Clerk, Battaglia – responded to Ms. DeSimone by saying that the Ms. DeSimone will provide a 
copy of the drawdown permit so that she can forward this to the Township Engineer.  She will be in touch 
with the Township Enginner after securing the permit.   
 
Councilman Weisbecker – suggested contacting the DEP regarding securing a permit to remove road grit 
from Gordon Lake.  He said that the Planning Board has looked at Dunkin donuts in the past and he 
asked Ms. Battaglia to have the Township Planner look at this because of situation of a Zoning Ordinance 
regarding tractor trailers backing into the facility.  It was being looked at in 2007.  There was also 
discussion with making an entrance behind the Radio Shack property.  He reminded the Council and 
Administration that he has requested the trees be addresed.  He requested  the installation of a 40mph 
speed limit on the other side of the road, as requested by Mr. Davis and asked for police equipment to 
monitor travellers speed.  He asked if there would be costs and contracts for the link to Municipal TV.  He 
said that the striping problems need to be addressed with the appropriate department head. 



------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, NEW JERSEY 

 

Minutes of: Township Council Workshop 

Date of Meeting: October 1, 2008 

Time of Meeting: 7:30 P.M. 

Minute Page No: Page 3 of 8 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Councilwoman Lichtenberg – spoke about Cahill Cross by Bald Eagle Commons.  She asked for the 
Police Department to reanalyze the speed limit.  Regarding the trees, she said that the ones on Macopin 
Road should be cut back and trees are growing on the wires. 
 
Councilman Nolan – asked about the possibility of installing speed bumps.  Councilman Scangarello 
expressed that with the amount of snow that West Milford receives, it would affect snow removal and 
plowing.  He said that people drive too fast.  There is a need for “Yield to Pedestrian” signs especially at 
the ShopRite center and at crosswalks.  He asked the Police Department to enforce that.  He said that 
Municipal TV is a good idea and recommends that as well as recording the Planning Board and Zoning 
Board meetings.  This would make the government more accessible to the public. 
 
Councilman Scangarello – suggested to speak with the Police Chief and have more Police presence 
during rush hours in the center of town.  He asked  that Interim Administrator Battaglia contact the 
Engineering Department to discuss striping.  He replied to Ms. DeSimone and said that he is not sure that 
a permit is needed.  Perhaps the Township can send a vac truck to clean out the sediment.  
 
Councilman Smolinski – said that Municipal TV is accessible on home computers.  However the site is 
partisan.  He said that people take their lives in their hands to cross Union Valley Road from Dunkin 
Donuts to the Shop Rite center.  He said that cones in the center of the street, to give pedestrians the 
right of way, are a good idea.  He urged Ms. DeSimone to attend Lake Committee meetings. 
 
Interim Administrator Battaglia – said with respect to pedestrian safety in the area of Union Valley Road 
and Marshall Road is something that is being addressed with respect to the Streetscape project.  She 
said that a number of notes have been made with respect to safe crossing zones. 
 
 

Agenda No. IX 
Approval of Expenditures 
 
None. 

Agenda No. X 
Discussion Items 

1) Ordinance – Background Checks – Volunteer Organizations – Township Attorney Semrau 
expressed that there has been discussion regarding this in the past.  He is seeking further 
direction.  He said that there are remaining questions regarding the definition of a youth 
serving organization.  He suggested that perhaps it should be defined as a recreation 
organization sponsored by the Township.  Additionally he asked who would ultimately be 
responsible for conducting background checks.  He also asked who would bear the expense 
and who would review the reports.  The Ordinance should identify a particular position such as 
the police department to serve as a clearing house.  He said that the Ordinance should 
identify who will retain the information.  An appeal process will be necessary.  The current 
Ordinance mentions annual checks.  Most townships ask for checks to be repeated every two 
or three years.  He mentioned that there is also the cost factor with annual checks.  He also 
asked whether the intention is to use the State Police or an outside vendor to perform the 
checks.  Mayor Bieri asked that along with youth, senior citizens and developly challenged 
organizations also be included in the Ordinance.  She said the it should also include 
contracted persons and should define the Townships facilities.  She also suggested that 
Volunteer Review Operations performs checks and keeps records and provides this service to 
the state.  She suggested using them and added that they only notify if there is a 
disqualification.  She is concerned about the search disqualifying someone for certain 
background offenses of long ago, or a minor offense.  Councilman Smolinski agreed with 
Mayor Bieri.  He also said that defining who has access to the reports needs to be defined.  
Item 33-36 needs to address the liability to the various organizations.  He agreed that yearly 
checks is too cumbersome but he is okay with every three years.  He said that item 33-38 
deals with a person being rehabilitated.  He feels that certain criminals cannot be rehabilitated.  
He said that he likes the state police procedure.  However the most convenient facility for one 
to go to is either in Wayne or in Sparta.  Regarding the expense, he said that the Megan 
Kanka Foundation has grant monies.  Mayor Bieri said that there is no reference in the 
Ordinance as to how and when someone must be notified of a negative report.  Councilman 
Nolan said that the Police Department must be the clearing house.  Township Attorney 
Semrau asked if the Council would want the state police to perform the checks with the 
Organization paying for the checks.  With regards to the appeal process he suggested that the 
Township Administrator hear any appeal.  Question arose as to what, if for some reason, one 
wants to appeal further, should there be an appeal board.  Consensus was that it should be, 
with the understanding that it would become public.  He said that with respect to affirmative 
rehabilitiation and reasons for disqualification, if the charges are expunged they will not show.  
He can add language to clarify rehabilitation.  Mayor Bieri asked who will check to see if 



------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, NEW JERSEY 

 

Minutes of: Township Council Workshop 

Date of Meeting: October 1, 2008 

Time of Meeting: 7:30 P.M. 

Minute Page No: Page 4 of 8 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
organizations and their coaches have complied.  Councilman Smolinski said that the 
Township currently has a database of all coaches.  Mayor Bieri asked if the Township can 
accept certification from organizations on an annual basis.  Township Attorney Semrau said 
that he will draft something for the next workshop meeting.  Councilman Nolan asked if this 
Ordinance will open the door to OPRA requests.  Township Attorney Semrau replied that the 
state has ruled that these are confidential.  The reports are not subject to disclosure.              

2) Ordinance – Contribution Disclosure Statements in Planning and Zoning Applications – 
Councilman Nolan expressed that this has been triggered by a newspaper editorial.  He said 
that it is a good government Ordinance.  It compliments the Attorney Accountability 
Ordinance, the Pay to Play Ordinance and Financial Disclosure statements.  It does not 
appear unduly burdensome.  Councilman Weisbecker asked if an applicant would have to 
disclose party affiliation and contributions.  Councilman Nolan said that this Ordinance would 
apply to municipal donations.  Councilman Smolinski asked if disclosed will people have to 
recuse themselves.  Councilman Nolan replied that they would.  Councilman Weisbecker 
asked if someone contributes to either the Democratic or Republican club, do members of the 
club have to recuse.  Township Attorney Semrau explained that the law states that any 
contribution over $300 has to be reported.  This information is already public through ELEC. 
He recommended that this be sent to the named boards to be reviewed.  Mr. Semrau said that 
he will send this to the boards for comments after he completes his draft.  

3) Resolution – 2008-345 NJ Highlands Tax Fairness Fund – Township Attorney Semrau 
summarized some comments.  He asked the Council for direction.  Councilman Nolan 
commented on flat revenues.  Consensus was given to Township Attorney Semrau and 
Interim Township Administrator Battaglia write a draft and send it down to the League of 
Municipalities on October 3.  Councilman Weisbecker asked that they find a way to include the 
Pinelands and make the Ordinance statewide. 

4) Resolution – Endorsing Assembly Bill 2768 – Councilwoman Lichtenberg said that the Council 
should pursue every avenue to acquire savings for taxpayers.  She asked for Council 
consensus for a Resolution in support of this bill.  Councilman Nolan asked how much income 
this could generate for West Milford; and why someone who lived in another town would 
support this.  He also asked if this will have a negative affect on state school aid.  He 
expressed a concern that the bill has no co-sponsor.  He said that it has been referred to the 
Solid Waste Commission and that this was the same commission that the Water Use 
Surcharge legislation was referred to.  He asked if this would be sending mixed signals.  
Councilman Smolinski said that this argument could be used for any state funding that the 
Council seeks.  He said that it was a blind way of looking at grants coming in West Milfords 
direction.  The Township has a vital commodity.  He feels that this avenue needs to be 
addressed.  His concern is that all of the Assemblymen and Senators are seeking a water tax, 
but with no benefits to West Milford.   Mayor Bieri expressed concerned with this Resolution 
weakening the Townships argument for Water Use Surcharge funding.  She is concerned with 
asking for too much and not receiving anything.  Councilman Weisbecker expressed concern 
that the revenue from the Water Use Surcharge tax would not benefit West Milford.  He 
visualizes the water companies using the revenues for infrastructure with no proceeds coming 
back to the host communities.  Council consensus was to proceed with this Resolution.         

5) Resolution – Endorsing Assembly Bill 2888 – Councilman Weisbecker said that the Office of 
Legal Services responded to Township Planner McGroarty’s memo.  He distributed an email 
to the Council members.  Many people now support this bill and he is seeking consensus to 
have Township Attorney Semrau draft a resolution in support of this.  Mayor Bieri said that this 
legislation needs more work.  Councilman Weisbecker said that perhaps the Council can draft 
a Resolution of support with suggested amendments.  Consensus was to proceed.  

6) Resolution – Drunk Driving Enforcement Grant – Interim Township Administrator relayed that 
the Police Chief has recommended that this come before Council.  Consensus was to 
proceed. 

7) Resolution – Support “Put the Brakes on Fatalities” Day – October 10, 2008 – Interim 
Township Administrator Battaglia expressed that this was being brought to Council on the 
recommendation of the Police Chief.  Consensus was to proceed. 

8) Resolution – Authorizing Tennessee Gas Pipeline to Conduct Surveys on Township Property 
– Consensus was given for a Resolution to conduct their surveys.  Councilman Weisbecker 
asked for an executive session discussion under contract negotiations.  This was scheduled 
for next week.  Resolution will also be on the agenda next week.  Township Attorney Semrau 
said that he will be certain that the insurance is adequate.  He will ask that they raise the limit 
to $5 million. 

9) E-Mail Policy – Township Attorney Semrau said that he has drafted an email policy.  This is a 
public record.  He is seeking to send this to the Zoning Board and Planning Board to ask if 
they wish to have accounts.  For those who don’t have a Township account, the policy will be 
not to use email for Township business.  Documents should be distributed by hard copy.  
Township Attorney Semrau said that concern is also discussing matters via email because the 
discussions should take place at meetings.  Interim Township Administrator said that for the 
Committees who do not have a Township email account would have to communicate either by 



------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, NEW JERSEY 

 

Minutes of: Township Council Workshop 

Date of Meeting: October 1, 2008 

Time of Meeting: 7:30 P.M. 

Minute Page No: Page 5 of 8 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
telephone or by hard copy.  These committees have been told that any Township business 
that is conveyed from their personal computer is subject to OPRA.  He suggested to put out 
the policy and tell the Zoning Board, Planning Board, Environmental Committee that they have 
accounts available.  Consensus to have Planning Board Chairman Gargano speak.  Mr. 
Gargano said that there are times when the Board attorney will direct questions directly to him.  
He said that it is too cumbersome to go through the secretary.  He wishes for a Planning 
Board Account so that his personal email account is not subject to OPRA.  He said that he 
uses email a couple of times a month, discussing Township business.   Daniel Jurkovic, 
Zoning Board Vice Chairman spoke that the Planning Board may have more of a need for an 
email account.  The Zoning Board is quasi judicial and not permitted to communicate outside 
of meetings.  He suggested that the option be there for accounts, but to not open them unless 
necessary.  Mayor Bieri said that there are practical needs for email such as scheduling 
meetings etc.  Consenus was to send this to the Boards for their review and a request for their 
response by November 22.    

10) Contract Amendment – Township Attorney – Interim Administrator Battaglia said that she has 
asked for this to be put on the agenda because she feels that the Township will exceed 
appropriations.  Fees for litigation have already approached $10,000.  The contract for Open 
Space has exceeded $8,000.  She is anticipating a short fall of $40,000 for 2008. Township 
Attorney Semrau said that he has been working this year at a feverish pace and that this year 
is the only year that he has had to ask for additional funding.  Historically, he has not charged 
for copies, fed-ex expenses and other matters, such as phone calls.  Councilman Nolan 
expressed gratitude that this is the first time that a matter has been brought to them prior to a 
“not to exceed” amount in need of being amended.  Consensus was to proceed.       

11) Contract Amendment – Integra Realty Random Woods Appraisal – Township Attorney 
Semrau explained that this is to complete the appraisal.  Council has given consent for 
consensus preliminary work.  Consensus was given to complete the appraisal.   

12) Contract – Integra Realty – Appraisal 352 Warwick Turnpike  - Township Attorney Semrau 
explained that this is with regards to possible acquisition of the property.  A proposal has been 
put together and he will contact them after his preliminary report.  Councilman Nolan asked if 
the purchase has been authorized and Mr. Semrau replied that no, a purchase has not been 
authorized.  It is not consistent with the Open Space trust.  Mayor Bieri asked if it was 
reasonable to be paying $5,000 for a small residential lot.  Mr. Semrau said that there are 
many questions with regards to the building being condemned.  The overall report is very 
similar to the Random Woods which is much more property.  Mr. Semrau said that he can 
obtain another quote.  This property is not a Green Acres and may not need a Green Acre 
certified appraiser.  Consensus was to obtain another quote.     

13) Contract – Weed Harvesting Agreement – Mayor Bieri conveyed that Mr. DeFeo from the Bi-
State Commission, called asking if they received additional state funding, would they be able 
to use the Township money for other purposes related to lake maintenance.  Township 
Attorney Semrau said that he believes that it is permissible.  Consensus was to proceed with 
the agreement.   

14) Contract – Highlands Initial Assessment Grant  - Interim Administrator Battaglia said that the 
Council has already given consensus to have Township Planner McGroarty go forward with 
that.  This is a formality with the not to exceed amount.  Consensus was given to proceed.   

15) Contract – Gordon Lakes Dam Project – Ritacco Construction – Consensus was to proceed. 
16) Contract – Oversight of Gordon Lakes Dam Project – Civil Dynamics – Interim Administrator 

Battaglia explained that this is part of the Dam Project and that Civil Dynamics has been 
working with the Engineering Department on this.  The Township Engineer has recommended 
that they perform the oversight as well.  Consensus was to move forward. 

17) Contract – 2008 Crack Sealing – Morris County Cooperative Purchasing Council – Consensus 
was to proceed. 

18) Contract – Rock Salt Bid – Consensus was to proceed.  Interim Administrator Battaglia said 
that the cost has increased dramatically since the Township has gone out to bid.   

19) Random Woods – Land Use Regulation Application - Township Attorney Semrau explained 
the application and said that there are 8-9 acres that the Township would like to see if it can 
be developed.  Data has been collected and will be sent to the DEP for a preliminary review to 
determine if a Highlands Exemption is possible.  This allows for the initial conferencing.  
Consensus was to move forward.  

Councilman Weisbecker left meeting at 10:30 pm 
 

Agenda No. XI 
Action Items 
 
The Township Council took action on the following items: 
 

Agenda No. VIII 1 
~ Resolution No. 2008- 345 ~ 

 



------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, NEW JERSEY 

 

Minutes of: Township Council Workshop 

Date of Meeting: October 1, 2008 

Time of Meeting: 7:30 P.M. 

Minute Page No: Page 6 of 8 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
NUMBER NOT USED 

 
Agenda No. VIII 2 

~ Resolution No. 2008- 360 ~ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC AND STATE OF 
NEW JERSEY APPROVING THE SUBMITTAL AND ACCEPTANCE OF A NEW JERSEY DIVISION OF 

HIGHWAY TRAFFIC SAFETY – DRUNK DRIVING ENFORCEMENT GRANT 
 
 WHEREAS, the Township Council of the Township of West Milford has been advised of a grant 
available from the New Jersey Division of Highway Traffic Safety to provide for Drunk Driving 
Enforcement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the State of New Jersey has made $30,067.43 available to the Township of West 
Milford. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Township Council of the Township of West 
Milford hereby authorizes the submittal and acceptance of a drunk driving enforcement grant in the 
amount of $30,067.43. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor or the Township Administrator be authorized and 
directed to approve the acceptance of said grant. 
 

Adopted:  October 1, 2008 
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Moved:   Nolan    Seconded:  Scangarello 
Voted Aye:   Smolinski, Nolan, Lichtenberg, Scangarello. 
Voted Nay:   None. 
Motion carried. 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 
Agenda No. VIII 3 

~ Resolution No. 2008- 361 ~ 
 RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, STATE OF NEW 

JERSEY SUPPORTING “PUT THE BRAKES ON FATALITIES DAY” 
 

WHEREAS, across the nation, traffic crashes caused more than 41,000 fatalities in 2007 and are 
the leading cause of death for young people ages 15 to 34; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in New Jersey, 724 individuals lost their lives in traffic crashes in 2007; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Alcohol related crashes accounted for 28 percent of the State’s traffic fatalities, while 
25 percent of all fatal crashes involved traveling at unsafe speeds; and 
 
 WHEREAS, motorcyclists, bicycle riders and pedestrians face increased risks on New Jersey’s 
roadways, as people opt for alternative modes of transportation; and 
 
 WHEREAS, 78 motorcyclists, 12 bicyclists and 144 pedestrians were killed in New Jersey in 
traffic related crashes in 2007; and 
 
 WHEREAS, safer driving behaviors such as buckling up every ride; obeying posted speed limits; 
avoiding aggressive driving behaviors and aggressive drivers; never drinking and driving; wearing proper 
safety gear when riding a motorcycle or bicycle; and focusing solely on driving by avoiding distractions, 
can dramatically reduce the number of traffic related injuries and deaths; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Township Council of the Township of West 
Milford, Passaic County declares its support for the “Put the Brakes on Fatalities Day” on October 10, 
2008 and calls upon everyone to put these lifesaving behaviors into practice to improve safety on the 
roadways in our community and throughout the State.   
 
Adopted:  October 1, 2008 
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Moved:   Lichtenberg    Seconded:  Scangarello 
Voted Aye:   Smolinski, Nolan, Lichtenberg, Scangarello. 
Voted Nay:   None. 
Motion carried. 



------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, NEW JERSEY 

 

Minutes of: Township Council Workshop 

Date of Meeting: October 1, 2008 

Time of Meeting: 7:30 P.M. 

Minute Page No: Page 7 of 8 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

Agenda No. VIII 4 
~ Resolution No. 2008- 362 ~  

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC AND STATE OF 
NEW JERSEY AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A DIVISION OF LAND USE REGULATION 

APPLICATION FORM (LURP-2) WITH RESPECT TO THE PROPERTY KNOWN AS 
BLOCK 8001, LOT 1, RANDOM WOODS 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the Township of West Milford has entered into an agreement with D.T.A.K. to 
purchase the property commonly known as Block 8001, Lot 1 on the Township’s tax map; and 
 

 WHEREAS, as part of the due diligence for this acquisition, the Township seeks to determine 
whether this property is suitable in accordance with the Highlands Water Protection and Planning Act for 
the development of municipal facilities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Ferriero Engineering has completed a Division of Land Use Regulation Application 
Form (LURP-2) for filing with the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection for a Highlands 
Preservation Area Approval Pre-application meeting; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the filing fee for the LURP-2 is $500 which the Chief Financial Officer certifies that 
such funds are available from the open space trust account 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Township of West 
Milford, County of Passaic and State of New Jersey that the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the 
LURP-2 application in connection with the property known as Block 8001, Lot 1, a copy of said application 
being on filed in the Township Clerk’s office, 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and Council hereby authorize the expenditure of 
$500 representing the filing fee of the LURP-2 payable to the Treasurer, State of New Jersey. 
 
 
Adopted:  October 1, 2008 
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Moved:   Scangarello    Seconded:  Nolan 
Voted Aye:   Smolinski, Nolan, Lichtenberg, Scangarello. 
Voted Nay:   None. 
Motion carried. 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 
Agenda No. XII 

Reports of Mayor, Administrator, Council Members, Attorney and Clerk 
 
Councilwoman Lichtenberg – reported that United Way would like to do a food drive and she is seeking 
permission to place bins in Town Hall and Hillcrest.  Consensus was given.  She reminded all that she is 
available at Town Hall on Thursdays from 10am-12noon. 
 
Councilman Scangarello – spoke regarding the Autumn Lights Festival route and asked that it be 
advertised in the newspapers and on the Township website.  He asked about the letter to Ms. Jackson 
regarding the Jungle Habitat lease agreement.  Mayor Bieri interjected that the Council has taken an 
approach regarding this lease.  Township Attorney Semrau said that he will call the Deputy Attorney 
General, Land Transactions.   
 
Councilman Smolinski – spoke regarding West Milford Roller Hockey and said that in order for the 
program to prosper, it will need a permanent home.  He said that he has worked with other Council 
members and they have searched the Township for a permanent home.  They have come up with one 
site which is the Echo Lake tennis courts on Germantown Road.  He asked for the Engineering 
Department to look at this as a possible site.  The court will fit with ample viewing room.  The fencing is in 
good condition and parking is accessible.  He asked Interim Administrator Battaglia to contact the 
Engineering Department for their input. 
 
Councilman Nolan – asked Mayor Bieri to write a letter to Governor Corzine and include the Townships 
Resolution that they are sending to the League of Municipalities.  He would like her to give him the 
specific numbers and what the Council perceives to be the problem.  He suggested to also ask him about 



------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

TOWNSHIP OF WEST MILFORD, COUNTY OF PASSAIC, NEW JERSEY 

 

Minutes of: Township Council Workshop 

Date of Meeting: October 1, 2008 

Time of Meeting: 7:30 P.M. 

Minute Page No: Page 8 of 8 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
the Jungle Habitat property.  He said that he reported a problem to the Interim Administrator about the 
bus shelter near Dunkin Donuts.  With winter coming he asked her to follow up with getting it replaced.  
 
Mayor Bieri – reported that the Township had received a dividend check from the Insurance Fund in the 
amount of $115,624, which was a reimbursement of premiums.  She said that the classic car show is on 
October 4 at Bubbling Springs from 9am-4pm.  Proceeds go to the Animal Shelter.  She reminded 
everyone of the upcoming Autumn Lights Festival on October 11

th
.  The 5k run will be the same day.  She 

said that the Beef Steak dinner to benefit Danny Gilligan has been sold out.  She also said that the Walk 
A Dog-athon is on October 19

th
 and that the Knights of Columbus dance is on October 25

th
.  

 
Antoinette Battaglia, Interim Administrator and Township Clerk – spoke regarding a request from the 
guild, the possibility of exchanging employee holidays by having employees work on either Columbus 
Day or Veterans Day in return for having the day after Christmas as a holiday.  Consensus was given.  
She apprised the Council of recent Committee resignations and is going to be sending out a letter of 
interest.  She said that on the next agenda, there will be a foreclosure list.  Township Attorney Semrau is 
following up with New Jersey Transit regarding the bus enclosure near Dunkin Donuts.  
 
Township Attorney Fred Semrau, Esq. – reported that he has already inquired about Green Valley 
Estates and he will be making a recommendation at the next meeting.  He has sent out the request for 
extension to COAH.  He commented that he had earlier updated the Council regarding Random Woods.  
Councilman Smolinski asked if an exemption were granted if a building would be able to be constructed 
on the property.  Mr. Semrau explained that due to the Highlands Act, it will take time, perhaps up to a 
year.  He said that Mayor Bieri has expressed to the Governor that there should be relief to municipalities, 
but for now, this has not been given.  Councilwoman Lichtenberg asked if the Board of Education had any 
relief that the municipality does not.  Mr. Semrau said that there are some specific reliefs that he will 
provide an outline for.   
 

Agenda No. XIII 
Executive Session 
None. 

Agenda No. XIV 
Adjournment 
 
There being no further business to come before the Council, the Township Council adjourned the meeting 
at 11:00 p.m. 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Moved:   Nolan     Seconded:  Scangarello 
Voted Aye:   Smolinski, Nolan, Lichtenberg, Scangarello. 
Voted Nay:   None. 
Motion carried. 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Approved: November 26, 2008   
 
Respectfully Submitted: 
Judy Manning, Part Time Secretary 

 
 
 
 
 
 

_________________________________ 
MAYOR BETTINA BIERI 
PRESIDING OFFICER 

 
 

_________________________________ 
ANTOINETTE BATTAGLIA 

TOWNSHIP CLERK 


